
 1 

NORTH BONNEVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, December 11, 2012 
Finance Committee Minutes 

 
Meeting Call to Order:  6:00 PM 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Mayor Don Stevens, Councilors Charles Pace, 
Jennifer Stratton-Pies, Patience Udall, Rick 
Lowrance, and Mike Baker  

Absent:  
Staff Present:  Clerk / Treasurer / Administrator John Spencer 
 

Unfinished Business 
2013 Budget 
John reviewed the final 2013 budget with Council. Detailed discussion ensued.  
 
 
 
New Business 
 
 
Adjournment 
7:02 



 2 

 
 
 
 

 
 

NORTH BONNEVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, December 11, 2012 

Minutes 
 
Meeting Call to Order:  7:10 PM 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Mayor Don Stevens, Councilors Charles Pace, Mike 
Baker, Patience Udall, Rick Lowrance and Jennifer 
Stratton-Pies 

Absent:  
Staff Present:  Clerk / Treasurer / Administrator John Spencer, City  

Attorney Ken Woodrich 
 
Guests Present 
Approximately 2 guests were present.  
 
Agenda Changes and Additions 
Mayor Stevens noted the council minutes on the consent agenda are for the 
meetings of 11/27/12 and 11/29/12; the agenda had a typographical error. 
 
Guest Presentations            
None.  
 
Public Hearings 
2013 budget 
Mayor Stevens opened the public hearing on Ordinance 1017 regarding the 2013 
Budget. 
No comments were made. 
Mayor Stevens closed the hearing. 
 
Consent Agenda 
The consent agenda included the 11/27/12 Council Minutes, 11/29/12 minutes, 
12/11/12 vouchers and November payroll. 

 Councilor Stratton-Pies moved to approve the consent agenda; 
2nd by Councilor Baker. 

Councilor Baker asked a couple questions about the invoice vouchers. 
Discussion ensued specifically on the sign being constructed for placement in 
front of the grand elder bigfoot carving. 



 3 

Consensus to direct the Heritage Trails Committee not to place the 
welcome sign under the grand elder carving. 

 
Councilor Pace made some comments regarding the minutes of the 11/29/12 
meeting, expressing concern regarding vouchers and agenda items. Discussion 
ensued. He also expressed concern regarding the Deputy Clerk’s benefits. 
 Yes  Councilors Stratton-Pies, Baker, Udall and Lowrance 
 No  Councilor Pace 
 Passed 4 – 1 
 
Public Comment 
None. 
 
Council Member Comments 
Councilor Stratton-Pies – Asked for to be excused from the 11/29/12 meeting. 

 Councilor Pace moved to excuse Councilor Stratton-Pies from the 
11/29/12 meeting, 2nd by Councilor Baker. 

 Yes  Councilors Pace, Baker, Udall and Lowrance 
 No   
 Abstain Councilor Stratton-Pies 
 Passed 4 – 0 – 1 
 
Councilor Udall – Asked to organize a rotation for attendance at Planning 
Commission meetings. Mayor Stevens suggested doing it by position number. 
John said he would send out a calendar for this purpose. Ken reminded the 
councilors that they should excuse themselves from Planning Commission 
meetings whenever the agenda include an adjudicative process. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
Councilor Pace – Expressed concern regarding the water charges being made to 
various departments and requested further detail. Expressed concern about the 
level of service at the front desk in city hall. 
 
Clerk/Treasurer’s Report 
John provided in written format and provided some additional updates: 

 He received the Draft 2011 Audit Report and asked the council for 
attendees at the exit conference scheduled for Tuesday. Discussion 
ensued. 

 Do’s and Don’ts training scheduled for January 22. 
 
Councilor Pace asked a few clarifying questions regarding the treasurer’s report. 
 
Councilor Baker asked for an update regarding negotiations with the union on 
part-time employees. He also asked for details on a veterinary bill. 
 
Attorney Report 
None. 
 



 4 

Unfinished Business 
Ordinance 1017 – 2013 Budget 

 Councilor Pace moved to table this item and convene a special meeting 
on 12/18; 2nd by Councilor Stratton-Pies. 

Councilor Udall will be available by phone. Councilor Stratton-Pies asked to 
schedule it at 7:00 PM. 
 Yes  Councilors Pace, Baker, Udall, Pace and Lowrance 
 No   
 Passed 5 – 0  
 
Resolution 452 – Fire Fighter Pensions 

 Councilor Stratton-Pies moved to approve Resolution 452; 2nd by 
Councilor Pace. 

 Yes  Councilors Pace, Baker, Udall, Pace and Lowrance 
 No   
 Passed 5 – 0  
 
New Business 
Discussion Regarding the Golf Course 
Mayor Stevens related an update provided to him by Port Executive Director 
John McSherry. Councilor Baker noted that the Port will have an honor box to 
continue operations. 
 
Councilor Pace expressed his support of existing zoning for the golf course. 
 
Cancel the 4th Tuesday Council Meeting 

 Councilor Stratton-Pies moved to cancel the last meeting in 
December, 2nd by Councilor Baker. 

 Yes  Councilors Pace, Baker, Udall, Pace and Lowrance 
 No   
 Passed 5 – 0  
 

Council asked Ken to be present for their special meeting on 
December 18th. 

 
Resolution Regarding Coal Trains 
Councilor Pace provided background, recommending the council look into the 
issue and draft a resolution for the first meeting in January. 
 
Resident and former City Planning Advisor Pollard Dixon provided a letter to 
council on this matter (attached), recommending the council pass a resolution 
expressing support for a full environmental impact study on the issue. 
 
Councilor Udall expressed concern regarding the impacts of the coal proposal to 
the region’s infrastructure as well as regarding noise and pollution impacts. 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Councilor Pace stated that he will work with Pollard Dixon to write a draft 
resolution. 
 
  



 5 

Closing Comments 
None. 
 
Adjournment 

Councilor Stratton-Pies moved to Adjourn; 2nd by Councilor Baker. 
Yes:  Councilors Udall, Baker, Pace, Lowrance, and  

Stratton-Pies.  
No:   
Passes  5 – 0 
 
Adjourned  9:28 PM 

 
 
 
_________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk 
 



 6 

  



 7 

 
 


